# TOWN OF CUTLER BAY TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

Wednesday, July 5, 2006 7:00 PM South Dade Regional Library 10750 SW 211 Street, 2<sup>nd</sup> floor Cutler Bay, Florida 33189

**I. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL OF MEMBERS:** The meeting was called to order by the mayor at 7:15 PM. Present were the following:

Councilmember Peggy R. Bell Councilmember Timothy J. Meerbott Councilmember Ernest N. Sochin Vice Mayor Edward P. MacDougall Mayor Paul S. Vrooman

Interim Town Manager Steven Alexander Interim Town Attorney Mitchell Bierman Interim Town Attorney Chad Friedman Town Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria

Mayor Vrooman led the pledge of allegiance.

**II. INVOCATION:** Mayor Vrooman asked all to join him in a moment of silence.

## III. PROCLAMATIONS, AWARDS, PRESENTATIONS:

A. The mayor presented a Certificate of Completion to Councilmember Sochin for attending the Florida League of Cities "Institute for Elected Municipal Officers." Councilmember Sochin briefed the members of the events of the institute.

## IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

A. Councilmember Meerbott made a motion approving the minutes of the meetings of June 7, 2006 and June 15, 2006. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Sochin and adopted by a unanimous 5-0 voice vote. The vote was as follows: Councilmembers Bell, Meerbott, Sochin, Vice Mayor MacDougall and Mayor Vrooman voting Yes.

## V. ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, AND DEFFERALS:

- A. AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF CUTLER BAY, FLORIDA, CREATING THE SECTION ENTITLED, "NUISANCE VEGETATION ABATEMENT"; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (DEFERRED INDEFINETELY)
- B. A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF CUTLER BAY, FLORIDA, APPROVING A MODIFICATION TO AN APPROVED SITE PLAN TO ALLOW FOR REDEVELOPMENT OF A MOVIE THEATER INTO A COMMERCIAL BUILDING AND APPROVAL OF AN UNUSUAL USE FOR OUTDOOR DINING FOR THE SHOPPING CENTER LOCATED AT 18403 SOUTH DIXIE HIGHWAY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (DEFERRED DATE CERTAIN: JULY 19<sup>TH</sup>)
- C. AN ORDINANCE IF THE MAYOR AND THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF CUTLER BAY, FLORIDA CREATING PROCEDURES FOR ZONING WORKSHOPS; PROVIDING FOR ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (DEFERRED DATE CERTAIN: JULY 19<sup>TH</sup>)

Vice Mayor MacDougall made a motion to approve the deferrals to date certain. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Meerbott and adopted by a unanimous 5-0 voice vote. The vote was as follows: Councilmembers Bell, Meerbott, Sochin, Vice Mayor MacDougall and Mayor Vrooman voting Yes.

## VI. TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT:

The Town Manager gave a report on minor changes to the Miami-Dade County interlocal agreements and is making great efforts to finalize the agreements. The Town Manager spoke in reference to town positions being advertised, specifically the grant writer's position and department directors. The manager also discussed briefly on the Lakes by the Bay, the Woolbright, and the Old Cutler and 184<sup>th</sup> items. The manager also announced that the lease for the police department office space has been executed and the drawings for the build-out will be finalized shortly. The Town Manager also discussed the success of the Fourth of July Whispering Pines Celebration.

#### VII. TOWN ATTORNEY'S REPORT:

The Town Attorney briefed town council on the first reading ordinances for the evening. The Master Interlocal has gone through the County commission's Environmental Land Use Committee and the Police Interlocal will soon be going through a committee designated by the commission for approval. A positive change likely to come, is the cost of policing services

which originally stated that costs would have mounted to over \$1.1 million has now decreased to slightly under \$600,000 for fiscal year forward in 2006. The attorney briefed town council on an agreement change on the bus benches which was originally a part of the Master Interlocal is now being considered as a separate agreement. Therefore, a contract would be drafted for the purchase of bus benches and bus shelters for a \$1 each.

- VIII. BOARD AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: None at this time.
- **IX. CONSENT AGENDA:** None at this time.
- X. QUASI-JUDICIAL CONSENT AGENDA PUBLIC HEARING: None at this time.
- XI. QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARINGS: None at this time.
- XII. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
  - A. RESOLUTIONS: None at this time.
- B. ORDINANCES: The clerk read the following ordinance, on first reading, by title:
  - a. AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF CUTLER BAY, FLORIDA, IMPLEMENTING THE UTILITY TAX AUTHORIZED BY SECTION 166.231, ET. SEQ., FLORIDA STATUTES, TO LEVY AND IMPOSE A UTILITY TAX UPON THE PURCHASE OF ELECTRICITY, WATER, METERED GAS, BOTTLED GAS, COAL, AND FUEL OIL WITHIN THE TOWN OF CUTLER BAY; AUTHORIZING TRANSMITTAL; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Mayor Vrooman opened the public hearing. There were no speakers at this time.

Councilmember Meerbott made a motion to approve the ordinance on first reading. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Bell and adopted by unanimous roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Councilmembers Bell, Meerbott, Sochin, Vice Mayor MacDougall and Mayor Vrooman voting Yes.

The clerk read the following ordinance, on first reading, by title:

b. AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF CUTLER BAY, FLORIDA, RELATING TO THE ESTABLISHMENT OF THE TOWN'S LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY; DESIGNATING THE TOWN COUNCIL AS THE LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY; PROVIDING FOR POWERS AND DUTIES;

PROVIDING FOR A RECORDING SECRETARY; PROVIDING STAFF FOR THE LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Mayor Vrooman opened the public hearing. There were no speakers.

Councilmember Sochin made a motion to approve the ordinance on first reading. The motion was seconded by Vice Mayor MacDougall and adopted by unanimous roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Councilmembers Bell, Meerbott, Sochin, Vice Mayor MacDougall and Mayor Vrooman voting Yes.

The clerk read the following ordinance, on first reading, by title:

c. AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF CUTLER BAY, FLORIDA, PERTAINING TO THE LOCAL COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TAX RATE; PROVIDING FOR RECITALS; PROVIDING FOR ELECTION NOT TO REQUIRE AND COLLECT PERMIT FEES; ESTABLISHING THE LOCAL COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TAX RATES; PROVIDING FOR NOTICE TO THE DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTING PROVISIONS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Mayor Vrooman opened the public hearing. There were no speakers.

Councilmember Bell made a motion to approve the ordinance on first reading. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Meerbott and adopted by unanimous roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Councilmembers Bell, Meerbott, Sochin, Vice Mayor MacDougall and Mayor Vrooman voting Yes.

The clerk read the following ordinance, on first reading, by title:

d. AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF CUTLER BAY, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE MIAMI-DADE COUNTY CODE AS APPLICABLE TO THE TOWN PURSUANT TO SECTION 8.3 OF THE TOWN CHARTER TO SUBSTITUTE THE TOWN COUNCIL FOR COUNTY OFFICIALS, BOARDS, OR COMMITTEES, PROVIDING FOR ZONING REVIEW, PROVIDING FOR AUTHORITY OF THE TOWN COUNCIL, PROVIDING FOR AN APPEAL PROCESS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE

# CODE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Mayor Vrooman opened the public hearing. There were no speakers.

Vice Mayor MacDougall made a motion to approve the ordinance on first reading. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Sochin and adopted by unanimous roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Councilmembers Bell, Meerbott, Sochin, Vice Mayor MacDougall and Mayor Vrooman voting Yes.

The clerk read the following ordinance, on second reading, by title:

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL a. OF THE TOWN OF CUTLER BAY, FLORIDA, PROVIDING MORATORIUM ON THE **ISSUANCE** DEVELOPMENT ORDERS AND DEVELOPMENT PERMITS FOR ALL PROPERTIES ABUTTING OLD CUTLER ROAD FROM S.W. 184 STREET SOUTH TO THE TOWN LIMITS; EXEMPTING CERTAIN DEVELOPMENT; PROVIDING FOR WAIVERS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING PROCEDURES FOR VESTED RIGHTS AND JUDICIAL REVIEW FOR THE SPECIFIC MATTERS ADDRESSED HEREIN; PROVIDING FOR A TERM; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER; PROVIDING FOR **ORDINANCES** CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

The Town Attorney made a brief presentation on the ordinance.

Mayor Vrooman opened the public hearing. There were no speakers.

Councilmember Meerbott made a motion to approve the ordinance on second hearing. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Bell and adopted by unanimous roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Councilmembers Bell, Meerbott, Sochin, Vice Mayor MacDougall and Mayor Vrooman voting Yes.

#### XIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS:

The following individuals spoke: William Meikljohn, 9311 Stirling Drive, Luciane Barroca, 22476 Southwest 94 Place.

#### XIV. MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS:

The mayor thanked all those who organized and participated in the Fourth of July Whispering Pines Celebration.

Member Meerbott discussed the Metrorail extension item and encouraged the public to continue efforts to working together,

Member Bell thanked the organizers for the Whispering Pines Celebration. Member Bell briefed the council on the Town Logo contest. Member Bell is also requesting a purchase of a plaque in memory of the late Mayor John Cosgrove.

Vice-Mayor MacDougall encouraged members of council and the community to suggest ideas in honoring the late Mayor John Cosgrove.

Member Sochin discussed his attendance to the Wi-Fi workshop and suggested to form a committee in the future to establish a Wi-Fi program within the town.

**XV. OTHER BUSINESS:** None at this time.

## XVI. NEXT MEETING ANNOUNCEMENT AND ADJOURNMENT:

The next council meeting will be held on August 2, 2006, at the South Dade Government Center.

The meeting was officially adjourned at 8:15 P.M.

Respectfully submitted:	
Erika Town	Gonzalez-Santamaria Clerk
	ed by the Town Council on O <sup>th</sup> _day of <u>July</u> , 2006
 Paul S	. Vrooman, Mayor

PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE TOWN HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE TOWN FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW.